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Custodian of the Two Holy Mosques
King Salman bin Abdulaziz Al Saud
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His Royal Highness Prince

Mohammed bin Salman bin Abdulaziz Al Saud
Crown Prince, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister

of Defense



In the Name of Allah, the Most Beneficent, the Most Merciful
Report of the Board of Directors to the Shareholders of City Cement Company
For the Fiscal Year Ended 31/12/2020

Presented to the General Assembly of the Company

Dear shareholders,

The Company's Board of Directors is pleased to present to you its annual report on
the performance and business results of your company for the fiscal year 2020,
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Board of Directors

Board Member
Mohammed bin Hikmat
Al-Zaiem

Board Member
Mohammed bin Saad
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Board Chairman
HRH Prince
Abdulaziz bin Mishaal bin Abdulaziz Al Saud

Board Member & CEO Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Majid bin Abdurrahman Al-
Osailan

Board Member
Omar bin Hamad
Al-Mishaal

Badr bin Omar Alabdullatif

Board Member
Saleh bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi



Boa I'd Re port 1. Company's Business Activity

City Cement Company (CCC) produces cement of various kinds in its Marat plant with an annual production
capacity of 3.65 MT,

2. Company's Business Results
1-Sales & Profits:

The volume of cement sold during 2020 amounted to 2.93 MT, compared to 269 MT in 2019, an increase of

8.92% attributable to increased demand for cement.

CCC was able to make good profits despite competition. 2020's gross profits amounted to SR (256.96) million, com-
pared to SR (231.11) millionin 2019, an increase of 11.18% resulting from the increase in the quantity sold. 2020's
net profits totaled SR (220.49) million, compared to SR (190.09) million in 2019, an increase of 15.99% attributable
1o the increase in the quantity sold as well as other revenues and A slight decrease in the administrative expenses

in addition to a decrease in the zakat expense.
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2. Production:

The plant’s production of clinker in 2020 amounted to 2.021 KT (i.e. 650% of the production capacity), compared to
2,011 KT in 2018, anincrease of 0.49%. Total inventory at the end of the year equaled 550 KT, compared to 1.301
KT, a decrease of 57.7%.

3. Future Outlook:

In 2020, the total demand for cement sales in the Kingdom improved, reaching 51.081 KT compared to 42.323 KT
in 2019, with a growth rate of 17.14%. The Company expects that demand growth will, God willing, continue to

recover in the coming vear.

4. Company's Revenues Geographically Distributed:

All sales of the Company were within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, as shown in the geographical breakdown below:

(Saudi Riyals)

Geographical Breakdown of CCC Revenue

Total Revenue Central Region Western Region Eastern Region

572,729,687 510,021,267 56435811 6,272,609

[ll. Future Projects & Plans

CCCis developing and implementing several policies and projects to rationalize costs and operating expenses and

enhance its overall performance, including:

1. Alternative Fuel Project:

The Company is working to develop additional sources of alternative fuel to reduce dependency on petroleum fuels,
reduce carbon emissions and preserve the environment, in line with the Kingdom»s Vision 2030.

IV. Loans

The Company declares that as at 31/12/2020 the Company had no outstanding loans payable to banks or
any other institutions. However, the Company has in place credit facility agreements with local banks gov-
erned by the terms and conditions of Islamic finance, totaling SR 90.743.694.
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V. Subsidiaries

(CCC has no subsidiaries but has two wholly-owned company branches.

: - Share , Shareholding
Main Activity Country of HO & Establishment

Capital Percentage

(CC Contracting

Specialized subcontracting Branch KSA 100%
Branch

Green Solutions Envi- Provision of environmental
Branch KSA 100%

EpnEREISENEESE@M solutions for waste treatment

VI. Statutory Payments to Government Agencies

Outstanding
payables till the Paid during the . -
Brief Description
end of the annual year

financial period

The Company is subject to the zakat and tax

regulations in force in Saudi Arabia. A provi-
11,656,244 9,711,421 sion for zakat is made on an accrual basis. The
Company obtained the finalassessment certif-
icates for the years 2006-2016.

45320158 6,955,627 The Company is subject to the zakat and tax

regulations in force in Saudi Arabia. These are

paid on a monthly basis within the statutory

Withholding Tax 823,735 - time limit based on previous month's payables.

The Company is subject to the Social Insur-
GOSI Contributions 3,016,507 253,586 ance Law. GOSI contributions are recognized

on an accrual basis.

Fees for the exploitation of raw materials are
Quarrying Fees 19,466,761 18,852,705 paid in respect of licenses for raw material

quarries.




Social responsibility and community service are among the priorities of the Company. CCC has done, and is still
doing, a great deal to support all the requirements of the neighboring areas, including sponsorships and devel-
opment and awareness-raising contributions covering religious, cultural, social, sports and other walks of life.
CCCis keen to contribute to everything that benefits and has added value to society and its various segments,
building on strategic plans consistent with the Company’s activities and the Kingdom's Vision 2030 in terms

of environmental and knowledge initiatives, thus contributing to a thriving social fabric.
a) Donations and Social Contributions:

1. Supported Irtigaa Program - Ministry of Education, Marat High School.

2. Sponsored a visit by the Governor of Riyadh Region - Marat Governorate.

3. Supported the Health Endowment Fund to confront COVID-19 - Ministry of Health.

4, Supported the Charitable Association for Rheumatic Diseases.
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CCC affirms its commitment to the implementation of all requirements as per Saudi and international standards to
maintain environmental integrity under the supervision and monitoring of Saudi Arabia's General Authority of Me-
teorology and Environmental Protection, while giving full consideration to maintaining the quality of its products.
CCC has received many quality certificates and international awards, including:

@)

!,._,L.m.f SASO Quality Mark (SOM) for adherence to the highest standards of quality

T
B
id

" Latest version of the IS0 9001:2015 Quality Management System Certification

Latest version of the ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management System
* Certification

Latest version of the BS OHSAS 18001:2007 Occupational Health and Safety Man-
! agement System Certification

Ty iy

Latest version of the EN ISO 50001:2011 Energy Management System Certification

QC 100 GOLDEN

The Green Era Award for Sustainability

!. " QC 100 PLATINUM
=]

| | Global CemFuels Award for Alternative Fuels
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¢) Environmental Social Governance:

Environmental social governance is defined as the environmental policy that calls for sustainable development and
the management of all human, political, social, and economic activities. This concept is the basis for the attention
that the Company pays to sustainable development by diversifying its energy sources. Since 2015, the Company has
found solutions to rationalize the consumption of petroleum fuels and gradually substitute them with alternative
fuels, and invested in a unit intended for utilizing wasted heat to generate energy with a view to producing clean
energy of up to 16 megawatts, and to find alternative raw materials to reduce carbon emissions in general, so that
the continued operation of all production lines is ensured and as per industry best standards and practices are im-
plemented. Moreover, in 2020, the Company established a branch called “Green Solutions Environmental Services

Company” in order to realize its vision of a sustainable environment.
In addition, CCC supports social contributions relating to the Environment:
1. Sponsored the Vision of Solar Energy Conference - Qassim University.

2. Supported MEWA's Environment Week - Shagra Governorate,

VIIl. Human Resources

With the aim of achieving its goals in terms of developing and training its human resources, CCC has adopted specialized
programs for personnel selection, development and career planning to ensure that positions are filled by qualified
and distinguished national competencies. CCC also encourages staff to participate positively in the development of
the Company and creates a suitable working environment that promotes teamwork, while continuing to strengthen
their skills and qualifications to boost their level of performance. The Company has nationalized many leadership
positions and employed national personnel in several departments.

Furthermore, the Company continues to cooperate with local and global entities specialized in providing technical,
managerial and marketing training services, in addition to holding in-house workshops and considering the possibility
of sending national personnel on scholarships in the cement industry domain within the Kingdom and/or abroad in
the future, It is worth noting that the Company is classified within the Nitagat Green Range.

IX. Risks

As CCC pays high attention to potential risks resulting from the competition that the Company anticipates
at the domestic level, it regularly reviews these risks and establish appropriate measures to address them. It
should be noted that therisks described below do not include all the risks that the Company could face, foritis
possible that there other risks that are not known to the Company at the present time or which the Company
deems to be either rare risks or risks with little impact:

m Operational and marketing risks:The Company pays attention to the potential risks resulting from the
competition anticipated at the local level owing to domestic cement companies' high inventories. The
Company monitors and regularly reviews these and operational risks and establish appropriate measures
10 address and contain them and to ensure the continuity of fuel supplies from Saudi Aramco..

B Economic risk:The domestic and global economic situation may have a directimpact on the future business
of the Company, including changes in sales performance, the level of market liquidity and financing costs,
industrial recession, competition from foreign countries and manufacturers, technical development, prices
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of fuel, inputs and the Company's end products, inflation, political events that could impact on corporate
markets, exchange rate volatility, and product alternatives that could have an impact on the Company 's
business and revenue,

B Risks related to laws and regulations: The running of the Company's business is governed by multiple
laws and regulations. Any changes to or replacements of these laws and regulations by any government
entity, regulatory body or judicial authority, or the issuance of an order ceasing the Company's business,
or all or some of the Company's products, could impact on the Company's business and revenue.

B Risk from focusing on certain customers: Thankfully, the Company's products cover a wide range of
customers. The Company depends on distributors for the distribution of its products. If any customer
or a group of customers or distributers incurred losses, stopped dealing with the Company or otherwise
failed to abide by the established criteria for selling the Company’s products, this would impact on the
Company»s business and revenue,

B Risk from the Company's geographical location and natural disasters: All the Company's business
is concentrated in one location. Any directive suspending the Company's business in this location or any
natural disasters such as floods or earthquakes occurring therein would have an impact on the Company's
business and revenue,

B Risk related to mining rights: Mining is an essential part of the Company's activity and mining rights
are granted to the Company by the Saudi government's relevant authorities. It those mining rights are
canceled or any restrictions imposed thereon, the Company's ability to operate the plant may be affected
and as a consequence there would be serious adverse repercussions for the Company’s financial position
and results of operations.

B Risk related to energy supplies: Cement production consumes large quantities of energy, which account
for a large portion of production costs. Therefare, any rise in fuel prices will have a negative impact on
the Company’s business, financial position and results of operations. Also, failure to secure the required
amount of fuel for the second line would have an ongoing negative and substantial effect on the Company.

X. Corporate Governance

The Company applies all the provisions set out in CMA's Governance Regulations, except for those listed below:

Partiall
Article Text of the Article/Paragraph appliedy Not applied | Reason for non-application

Unapplied indicative articles

Indicative articles which will
Articles 38, 39,41, 70,71,72,76,77,78,

/ be applied when they become
83,85,88,89(3) & 95
mandatory.
The Ordinary General Assembly shall, upon a The article is indicative. Never-
proposal by the Board of Directors, establish theless, the Company’s social
. a policy that ensures a balance between its contributions are approved by
Article 87 o o / .
objectives and those of the community with the Board of Directors, and work
the aim to develop the socio-economic con- is underway to formulate the
ditions of the community. required policy.




Xl. Description of Any Deviations from the Accounting Standards Adopted by
the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA)

There are no deviations from the accounting standards issued by SOCPA,

XIl. (@): Names of the Members of the Current Board of Directors in
its Fifth Session, Committee Members, their Current and Former Po-
sitions, Qualifications, Experience, and Board Memberships in Other
Joint Stock Companies (JSCs)

Title Qualifications, Current & Former Positions, and SR e
Experience

Bachelor of Business Administration.
Board Chairman, City Cement Co.
Board Chairman, Aljouf Agricultural Co.

President, Tech Services Co. * City Cement Co. (Public

HRH Prince 15O

Abdulaziz bin Mishaal JERESIMSELEY
bin Abdulaziz Al Saud

President, Advanced IT Co.
e Allouf Agricultural Co.
GM, First Building Construction, a private establishment. | (public SC)

General supervision of several branches affiliated
with his private enterprises in various business areas,
services and contracting activities.

Commercial agent for several US, European and
Asian companies.

High School Diploma.

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, Managing
Director & Chairman of the Executive Committee,
City Cement Co.

Board Member and Member of the Audit Committee,
Alabdullatif Holding Group.

GM, Alabdullatif Furniture.

Board Member and Member of the Executive Com-

mittee, Future Ceramics. e (ity Cement (Public |SC)

Vice Chairman, | Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration | ¢ Alabdullatif Holding

Badr bin Omar Managing Direc- | committee, City Cement (formerly). Group (Closed |SC)
tor & Chairman

Alabdullatif of the Execu- | Board Member, Alabdullatif Industrial Investment | e Future Ceramics (Closed
tive Committee | (formerly). e

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Com-
mittee, Alabdullatif Industrial Investment (formerly).

Chairman of the Audit Committee, Alabdullatif In-
dustrial Investment (formerly).

Assistant GM, Alabdullatif Furniture (formerly).

Director of Administration & in charge of all branches
countrywide (formerly).

Director, Government Relations, Alabdullatif Furni-
ture (formerly).
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Majid bin Abdurrahman

Al-Osailan

Board Member
& CEQ

Preparing for an INSEAD-accredited global GM
certification.

Master of Administrative Sciences from the Amer-
ican International University (certified by the Min-
istry of Higher Education and SACM.

Future Managers Program, equivalent to a mas-
ter's degree in banking, from Altaweel Institute.

Various conferences, workshops and training
courses within and outside the Kingdom in spe-
Cialized administrative, financial and technical in-
dustrial disciplines / 3000+ hours (INSEAD School
of Business, University of San Diego School of
Business, Euromoney Institute, Oxford Business
Institute, London Institute of Business, Saudi
Banking Institute, Leoron International Training
Center).

Bachelor of Accounting, King Saud University.

Member of the Saudi International Chamber of
Commerce.

Board Member, Ajil Financial Services.
Board Member and CEO, City Cement.
Member of the Executive Committee, City Cement.

Board Member, Saudi Makamin Holding Co. (for-
merly).

Board Member, Alabdullatif Industrial Investment.

Chairman of the Audit Committee, Alabdullatif In-
dustrial Investment.

Board Member, Natural Gas Distribution Co.

Member of the Executive Committee, Natural Gas
Distribution Co.

Member of the Audit Committee, Murabaha In-
stallment Co. (formerly).

Head of Finance, Administration & IT, City Cement
(formerly).

Head of Finance, City Cement (formerly).

Corporate Banking Department, Riyad Bank (for-
merly).

Credit & Risk Department, Riyad Bank (formerly).

Accounting Dept, Fransi (formerly).

¢ Ajil Financial Services
(Closed JSQ)

e City Cement (Public
150

¢ Alabdullatif Industrial
Investment  (Public
156)

e Natural Gas Distribu-
tion Co. (Closed JSC)




Mohammed bin Saad
Al-Moajil

Omar bin Hamad
Al-Mishaal

Saleh bin Sulaiman
Al-Rajhi
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Board Member

Bachelor of Business Administration & Marketing
(Honors), American University in Dubai, UAE.

Master of Business Administration, Stanford Uni-
versity, USA.

Board Member, City Cement.

Board Member & Chairman of the Investment
Committee, Tech Investment Co.

Board Member and Chairman of the Executive &
Investment Committees, Dhahran International
Exhibitions Company (Dhahran Expo).

Member of the Saudi British Business Council.
Member of the Saudi Irish Business Council.

Board Member and Head of Investment, AlMoajil
Trading & Contracting.

Financial Advisor, Atlantic Pacific Capital, UK (for-
merly).

e (ity Cement (Public |SC)
¢ AlMoajil Trading & Con-
tracting (Closed JSC)
¢ Dhahran Expo (Closed

NG
e Tech Investment

(Closed  JSO)

e Dhahran Chemical In-
dustries and Marketing
(Closed JSQ)

Board Member

Higher Diploma in Law Studies.

Bachelor of Education.

Master of Sharia and a PhD researcher in law.
Board Member, City Cement.

Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, City Cement (formerly).

CEO, Basiga Holding.

Board Member, CEO & Managing Director, Rakhaa
Holding.

GM, ABYAT Saudi Arabia.
Legal Advisor, Cabinet Office (formerly).

e (City Cement (Public
NG

Board Member
& Chairman of
the Nomination
and Remunera-

tion Committee

Bachelor of Business Administration.

Experience in banking and the management of
commercial & investment companies.

e (ity Cement (Public
NG

Board Member

Bachelor's degree in Electrical Engineering.
Holder of several management program certificates.

Board Member & Chairman of the Audit Committee,
City Cement.

Board Member & CEOQ, International Trading and
Contracting Co. Ltd (ITCQC).

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mem-
ber of the Executive Committee & the Nomination,
Appointment and Remuneration Committee, Riyadh
Cables Group Company.

Board Chairman, Saudi Modern Company for Spe-
cialized Electrical Cables & Wires Industry.

Board Chairman, Riyadh Cables Company.

Board Member, Saudi Modern Company for Metals,
(Cables and Plastic Industry.

Board Member, Saudi Modern Company for Telephone
(ables Industry.

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Member
of the Executive Committee, Future Ceramics.

Board Member, Afaq Al Hikma.
Board Member, Al Afaq Development.
Board Member, Ajyal Al Hikma.
Board Member, Deira Akel Real Estate.

Executive Director, Riyadh Cables Group Company
(formerly).

¢ (ity Cement (Public
150

e Future Ceramics
(Closed JSC)

¢ Saudi Modern Com-
pany for Specialized
Electrical Cables
& Wires Industry
(Closed JSC)

¢ Saudi Modern Compa-
ny for Metals, Cables
and Plastic Industry
(Closed |SC)

* Saudi Modern Com-
pany for Telephone
Cables Industry
(Closed ]SC)

e Afag Al Hikma Devel-
opment (Closed |SC)

¢ Riyadh Cables Group
(Closed ]SC)

Mohammed bin & Chairman
Hikmat Al-Zaiem of the Audit
Committee

Member of the

Mohammed bin Audit Commit-

EECREARYCEICIIN tce (Non-Board
Member)

Bachelor of Business Administration, USA.
Master of Financial Management, USA.

Several advanced credit & risk management
courses.

Member of the Audit Committee, City Cement.

Corporate and Institutional Banking Department,
SABB.

Member of the Board of Directors & the Nomination
andRemuneration Committee, AlSorayaiTrading.

Board Member, United Insulations Co. (formerly).

Head of the Financial Analysis Department, Dar Al
Gharbia Financial Consultancy (formerly).

Member of the
Nomination &
Remuneration
Committee
(Non-Board
Member)

Abdurrahman bin
Saad Al-Qarni

Bachelor of Security Sciences.
Higher Diploma in Administrative Leadership.
Master of Administrative Science.

Member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, City Cement.

GM, Rawdat Al Emaar Contracting Est.
Qasr Al-Hokm Force Director (formerly).

Director of Criminal Investigation, Riyadh Police
(formerly).




XIlI. (b): Names of the Members of the Executive Management Team, their Cur-

rent and Former Positions, Qualifications and Experience

Deputy CEO- transformation

Turki bin Abdulaziz Coundil (SBDQ)

Alabdullatif

Bachelor of Public Administration, King Saud University.

Started his career in the sales services sector then moved
to the banking sector as a sales and marketing services
representative and then to the cement industry where he
served in various leadership positions including Head of
HR, Head of Administration and Chairman of the Develop-
ment and Organizational Projects Committee, with more
than fifteen years of work experience.

Received a number of training courses in administrative
areas.

Deputy CEQ - Strategic

Abdurrahman Mostafa Business Development

Ahmed Council (SBDC)

Bachelor of Business Administration, University of Man-
chester, UK,

Bachelor of Mechanical Power Engineering.

\Various specialized technical courses and conferences in
the cement industry, supply chain management and HR.

Head, Strategic Planning Department (formerly).

Head, Technical and Development Sector, InterCement
(formerly).

Director, Performance Improvement & Quality Depart-
ment, InterCement (formerly).

Director, Production Department, Italcementi (formerly).

A number of important posts at Italcementi (formerly).

¢ Board Committees:

1. The Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee oversees risk management and internal controls in the various aspects of the Company's

business. Its responsibilities include reviewing and discussing the Company's quarterly and annual financial state-

ments. The Committee also makes recommendations to the Board of Directors and the General Assembly on the

appointment of the Company's CPA.

e Members of the Audit Committee in the Fifth Session of the Board:

Designation 13/1/2020 | 9/3/2020 | 11/3/2020 | 22/3/2020 | 6/5/2020 | 6/8/2020 & 2/11/2020
Mr. Mohammed bin Committee
v v v v v v v
Hikmat Al-Zaiem Chairman
Mr. Omar bin Hamad Committee
v v v v v v v
Al-Mishaal Member
Mr. Mohammed bin Committee Member
v v v v v v v
Hamdan Al-Sorayai (Non-Board Member)

Idris Abu Al-Qasim

Financial Manager
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Fellow of the American Institute of Certified Public Ac-
countants.

Bachelor of Accounting, University of Khartoum.
Director, Financial Department.

Director of Audit (formerly).

Supervises accountants and cashiers.

Prepares financial reports and reconciles annual & quar-
terly financial statements.

Financial analysis, performance indicators and feasibility
studies.

Formulates financial policies and procedures.

Participates in the implementation of accounting pro-
grams.

Designs audit plans and evaluates internal control sys-
tems.

Prepares estimated budgets and strategic plans.

Prepares and examines zakat and tax returns.

e |nits fifth session, the Committee held seven meetings in 2020.

2. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviews the structure of the Board of Directors and how effectively
its members are performing, makes recommendations on changes that could be made, identifies weaknesses and
strengths, ascertains the independence and absence of conflicts of interest on the part of the members, recom-
mends member nominations as needed, and reviews the remuneration and compensation of the Board committees,

Executive Management team’s salaries and Saudization percentages.

e Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in the Fifth Session of the Board:

Designation 16/2/2020 24/3/2020
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi Committee Member v v
Mr. Mohammed bin Saad Al-Moajil Committee Member v v
) i Committee Member
Mr. Abdurrahman bin Saad Al-Qarni v v
(Non-Board Member)

e |nits fifth session, the Committee held two meetings in 2020.

3. The Executive Committee:

The Executive Committee develops studies and strategic plans, finds appropriate solutions and alternatives, and
makes recommendations to the Board.

e Members of the Executive Committee in the Fifth Session of the Board:

Name Designation 9/9/2020
Mr. Badr bin Omar Alabdullatif Committee Chairman v
Mr. Majid bin Abdurrahman Al-Osailan Committee Member v
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat Al-Zaiem Committee Member v

e Inits fifth session, the Committee held one meeting in 2020.



e Committee Members’ Remuneration for 2020:

Reimbursements and
Attendance .
Travel & Accommodation Total

Fixed Remuneration

Fee
Costs

Executive Committee Members

Mr. Badr bin Omar Alabdullatif 3,000
Mr. Majid bin Abdurrahman Al-Osailan 3,000
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat Al-Zaiem 3,000
Audit Committee Members
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat Al-Zaiem 21,000 0
Mr. Omar bin Hamad Al-Mishaal 21,000 0
Mr. Mohammed bin Hamdan Al-Sorayai 50,000 21,000 3131
Nomination & Remuneration Committee Members
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi 6,000
Mr. Mohammed bin Saad Al-Moajil 6,000
Mr. Abdurrahman bin Saad Al-Qarni 50,000 6,000

e The Board of Directors:

1. Board Members:

e Members of the Board of Directars and their Remuneration during 2020 in the Board's Fifth Session:

2. Board Members’ Attendance of Board Meetings in 2020:

The table below shows the meetings of the members of the Board of Directors during 2020 in the Board's

fifth session:

Number of Meetings

Name 25/3/2020 | 7/4/2020 | 23/4/2020 | 24/6/2020 | 26/10/2020 | 5/11/2020
HRH Prince Abdulaziz bin

v v v v 4 X
Mishaal Al Saud
Mr, Badr bin Omar Alabdul-

v v v v v v
latif
Mr. Majid bin Abdurrahman

v v v v v v
Al-Osailan
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaiman

v v v v v v
Al-Rajhi
Mr. Mohammed bin Saad

v v v v v v
Al-Moajil
Mr. Omar bin Hamad Al-

v v v v v v
Mishaal
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat

v v v v v v
Al-Zaiem

3. Dates of the Shareholders’ General Assemblies Held during the Past Financial Year and Board Members

who Attended the Same:

Meeting Salary, Com-
Annual .
Category . Attendance pensation &
Remuneration
Fee Allowances
HRH Prince Abdulaziz bin Mishaal
Board Chairman | Independent 200,000 15,000
Al Saud
Vice Chairman
Mr. Badr bin Omar Alabdullatif D Executive 200,000 18,000
Mr. Majid bin Abdurrahman
Board Member Executive 200,000 18,000
Al-Osailan
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi | BoardMember | Independent 200,000 18,000
Mr. Mohammed bin Saad
' BoardMember | Independent 200,000 18,000
Al-Moajil
Mr. Omar bin Hamad Al-Mishaal | Board Member | Independent 200,000 18,000
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat
Board Member | Independent 200,000 18,000
Al-Zaiem

¢ Acting on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board recommended
that a recommendation be made to the next General Assembly to approve annual remuneration payments to

the Board members totaling SR 1.400.000 on a distribution basis of SR 200.000 for each member.

The above remuneration was determined in accordance with the Remuneration Policy approved by the General
Assembly on 3/5/2018 so as to avoid any material deviations.
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10th Ordinary General Assembly

11th Ordinary General Assembly

29/6/2020 25/8/2020
HRH Prince Abdulaziz bin Mishaal Al Saud X X
Mr. Badr bin Omar Alabdullatif v v
Mr. Majid bin Abdurrahman Al-Osailan v v
Mr. Mohammed bin Saad Al-Moajil X X
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi X v
Mr. Omar bin Hamad Al-Mishaal v v
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat Al-Zaiem v v

4. Steps Taken by the Board to Inform its Members, and in Particular Non-Executives, of Shareholders’ Pro-
posals and Comments about the Company and its Performance:

The Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board informs the Board members, and in particular non-executives, of
shareholders' proposals and comments about the Company and its performance.



5. Disclosure of the Remuneration of the Board Members and Executive Management as Provided for in

Article 93 of the Corporate Governance Regulations:

The following is the text of the Remuneration Policy for Board Members, Board Committees and the
Executive Management which was approved by the General Assembly on 3/5/2018:

Introduction:

This Remuneration Policy for Board Members, Board
Committees and the Executive Management has been
prepared with the aim of complying with the Corporate
Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market
Authority (CMA) Board pursuant to Resolution 8-16-2017
dated 16/5/1438H, corresponding to 13/2/2017, which

Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to define clear criteria for
the remuneration of Board members, Board Committees
and senior executives in light of the Companies Law
requirements and CMA regulations. In addition, this policy
aims to attract professionals with adequate competence,
capabilities and talent to serve on the Company's Board,

General Criteria for Remuneration:

stipulate that the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) shall "prepare a clear policy for the remuneration
of the Board members, Board committees and Executive
Management, and present such policy to the Board for
consideration, in preparation for approval by the General
Assembly.”

committees and Executive Management by adopting
incentive remuneration schemes and programs linked to
performance, thus contributing to the improvement of
the Company's performance and achievement of the best
interests of its shareholders.

It is the responsibility of the NRC to make recommendations to the Board of Directors on the remuneration
of the Board members, committee members and senior executives of the Company in accordance with the

approved criteria, as outlined in the following:;

e The remuneration shall be commensurate with the
Company's activities, strategy, objectives and the
skills needed to manage it, and consistent with the
magnitude, nature and degree of risks faced by the
Company.

e The Company shall take into consideration the
practices of other companies and those prevailing
in the labor market in respect of the determination
of remuneration, avoiding unjustifiable increases in
remuneration and compensation that may result from
such benchmark comparisons,

e Theremuneration shall be determined based on job
level, duties and responsibilities, educational qualifica-
tions, work experience, skills and performance level.

e Remuneration of the Board Members :

¢ The remuneration shall be reasonably sufficient to
attract, motivate and retain adequately competent
and experienced professionals.

* Theremuneration of a Board member shall be deter-
mined such that it reflects the member’s experience,
responsibilities, duties, the number of Board meetings
attended by the member, etc.

¢ The remuneration shall be suspended and taken
back where it turns out that it was given based
on inaccurate information provided by the mem-
ber of the Board or Executive Management, in
order to prevent abuse of office to obtain undue
remuneration.

1. The remuneration of City Cement Company (CCC) Board members shall consist of an annual lump sum,
meeting attendance fee, reimbursement allowance, in-kind benefits, or a combination of two or more of
these benefits, provided that the ceiling prescribed by the Companies Law and its implementing regula-
tions shall nat be exceeded, as shown in the table below:

Attendance fee per meeting SR 3.000

Transportation and travel allowance for mem-
. . . . Equal to actual expenses
bers residing outside the city of venue (Riyadh)

Determined annually without exceeding SR 200,000
Annual lump sum per member , , , , o
as stipulated in the Company's Articles of Association

28 | Annual Report 2020

Adjustment & Payment:

The annual lump-sum remuneration of a Board member indicated above may be subject to review from
time to time on the NRC's recommendation in light of the Company’s performance, in which case the ap-
proval of the shareholders' General Assembly (GA) shall be obtained.

2. The amount of such remuneration may vary in light of a policy issued by the NRC and approved by the
Company's GA.

3. Theannual Boardreport shall include a comprehensive statement of all the amounts received by the Board
members during the fiscal year including remuneration, reimbursement allowances and other benefits, as
well as all the amounts received by the Board members in their capacities as employees or managers, orin
consideration of any technical, administrative or advisory work performed. The report shall also include a
statement of the number of Board meetings and the number of meetings attended by each member from
the date of the last meeting of the GA.

4. The Board may set special remuneration payments for the Board Chairman, Vice Chairman and Managing
Director in accordance with Article 21(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Remuneration of the Committee Members:

1. The Board shall determine and approve the remuneration, attendance fees and other benefits of the
members of its committees, with the exception of the Audit Committee, upon the recommendation of
the NRC.

2. The meeting attendance fee and other benefits shall be paid as described herein in accordance with the
table below:

Attendance fee per meeting (to be paid following each
(meeting

SR 3.000

Transportation and travel allowance for members

. . . ) Equal to actual expenses
(residing outside the city of venue (Riyadh

Remuneration of a committee member who is a non-
Board member (as approved by the NRC based on the
(functions assigned thereto

Up to and not exceeding SR 50.000 per
annum

Adjustment & Payment:

The annual lump-sum remuneration of a committee member (who is a non-Board member) indicatedabove
may be subject to review from time to time based on a recommendation by the NRC to the Board (which,
in turn, shall make a recommendation in case of approval) in light of the Company's performance, in which
case the GA's approval shall be obtained.

3. The remuneration and meeting attendance fee of the members of the Audit Committee shall be ap-
proved by the shareholders’ GA upon the Board's recommendation as per the regulations.



Remuneration of the Executive Management:

® The NRC shall review and approve the salary scale and incentive schemes for all employees and senior
executives onaregular basis upon the recommendation of the Executive Management. The remuneration
of the Executive Management team shall include:

B A base salary (to be paid on a monthly basis at the end of each Gregorian month), plus allowances
including but not limited to: a housing allowance, a transportation allowance, a telephone allowance,
a children tuition fee allowance, medical insurance benefits for the team member and his/her family,

6. (a) The Interests and Rights of the Members of the Current Board of Directors in its Fifth Session
in the Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company or Any of its Subsidiaries, as well as Those of
Their Spouses and Minor Children:

annual leave, annual air tickets and end-of-service benefits in accordance with the Labor Law and the

Company's HR Policy.

® A KPI-linked annual bonus based on the relevant annual appraisal.

B The annual bonus of all employees and senior executives shall be approved by a resolution of the Board

on the recommendation of the NRC.

Further Guidelines on Remuneration & Payment Mechanism:

1

Board members shall not vote on the agenda item
relating to the remuneration of the Board members
at ameeting of the shareholders' GA.

. The Company shall disclose the remuneration of the
Board members, committee members and senior
executives in the annual Board report as prescribed
by the directives and guidelines issued under the
Companies Law and CMA laws and their implement-
ing regulations.

. Amember shall be entitled to remuneration starting
from the date of joining the Board or committee pro
rata to the duration of serving thereon.

. The remuneration payments of the members of
the Board and committees shall be processed by

the Board Secretary or committee secretary, as
applicable, and approved by the CFO.

. The attendance fee for a Board meeting or a com-

mittee meeting shall be paid within one week after
the meeting.

. With the start date of serving on the Board during

the expired fiscal year being taken into consider-
ation, the annual remuneration of the Board shall
be paid on an annual basis after being approved by
the GA. The annual remuneration of a committee
member (wha is a non-Board member) shall be paid
annually within 30 days following the end of the
fiscal year, with the start date of serving on the
committee during the expired fiscal year being taken
inta consideration.,

Board Secretary’s & Committee Secretaries’ Remuneration and Attendance Fees:

Board Secretary’s attendance fee SR 2.000
A committee secretary’s attendance fee SR 1.000
Board Secretary's annual remuneration SR 20.000
A committee secretary’s annual remuneration SR 20.000

Adjustment & Payment:

The annual lump-sum remuneration of the Board Secretary and committee secretaries indicated above
may be subject to review from time to time based on a recommendation by the NRC to the Board (which,
in turn, shall make a recommendation in case of approval) in light of the Company's performance, in which
case the GA's approval shall be obtained.

F

inal Provisions (Review, Amendment & Publication):

This Policy shall enter into force and be complied with by the Company as of 1/1/2017. It shall be reviewed on a
regular basis (as needed) by the NRC, Any amendments proposed by the NRC shall be submitted to the Board which,
in turn, shall examine and review the proposed amendments and present them to the shareholders’ GA for approval.
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Shares at the end Shares at theend = Change during the
of 2019 of 2020 year
No. of No. of No. of
Name Remarks Percentage Percentage Percentage
Shares Shares Shares
HRH Prince Abdulaziz
bin Mishaal Al Saud - 957,727 = 0506 = 708677 0506 = 249050  (26%)
Board Chairman
Mr. Badr bin Omar
Alabdullatif - 2,000 0.001% 1,479 0.001% 521 (26%)
Vice Chairman
Mr. Majid bin Abdu-
rrahman Al-Osailan - 40000 = 0021% = 29598 @ 0021% @ 10402 (26%)
Board Member & CEO
Mr. Mohammed bin
Hikmat Al-Zaiem - 280,000 = 0147% @ 207,188 0147% @ 72812 (26%)
Board Member
Mr. Omar bin Hamad
Al-Mishaal - 969,000 = 0512 = 710359 0507 @ 258641 @ (26%)
Board Member
Mr.Mohammed bin | Represents Al-
Saad Al-Maaijil Moajil Trading  4,300000 2272 3181818 2272 1118182  (26%)
Board Member & Contracting
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaim-
an Al-Rajhi - 117 0,0001 86 0,0001 31 (26%)
Board Member

It should be noted that the Company effected a capital reduction which resulted in a change in the share-
holding percentages.



e (b) Senior Executives' Interests and Rights in the Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company or
Any of its Subsidiaries, as well as Those of Their Spouses and Minor Children;

Shares at the Shares at the No. of
Position RENENS Percentage
end of 2019 end of 2020 Shares

Mr. Turki bin Ab- Deputy CEO -
His shares - -
dulaziz Alabdullatif SBDC

7. Senior Executives’' Remuneration & Compensation:

The remuneration and compensation of the Company's senior executives (namely: the Managing Director, CEQ,
Deputy CEO - SBDC, Deputy CEQ - SBDC, and CFO) were as follows:

Salaries Allowances Bonuses
3199104 1.760.929 1.728.05¢2

XIll.  Company’s Declarations

Out of departure of its role and responsibilities in protecting the Company's assets, the Board of Directors,
based on the information available to it, the auditor's report, the current market requirement outcomes and
the future indicators confirms the following;

1. The account books have been prepared properly.

The internal control system has been prepared on proper bases and implemented effectively.

2
3. Thereis not doubt at all about the Company's ability to continue the activity.
4

There are no investments or reserves created for the benefit of employees (for example, provident, loans,
employees’ shares..etc.).

There is no contract with substantial interest for a member of the founding Board of Directors or the
Executive Management Team.

There is no arrangement or agreement under which a member of the founding Board of Directors or the
Executive Management Team assigns any salary or remuneration.

There is no arrangement or agreement under which a founding shareholder assigns any rights to profits.

Shareholders' register has been requested five times for the following reasons:

Request Date of File Purpose of Request

23/02/2020 Preparing the Board's report
28/06/2020 Holding the General Assembly
23/08/2020 Holding the General Assembly
27/10/2020 Reducing the share capital

15/11/2020 Distributing the profits
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XIV: Audit Committee’s Recommendations in Conflict with the Board's Resolutions
or the Board Refused to Adopt as to the Appointment, Dismissal, Determination of
Fees and Performance Evaluation of the Company'’s Auditor or the Appointment
of an Internal Auditor, and Grounds of these Recommendations and Reasons for
not Adopting them.

There are no recommendations from Audit Committee that are in conflict with the Board's resolutions or that the
Board refused to adopt with regard to the appointment, dismissal, determination of remuneration and performance
evaluation of the Company's Auditor or the appointment of Internal Auditor.

XV: Annual Audit of the Company's Effective Internal Control Procedures:

The conclusions of the annual review of the effective internal control procedures of 2020 showed that there are
no substantial remarks affecting the Company's activity. KPMG conducts the Company's internal audits, carries out
continuous audits to check the effectiveness of the internal control system in protecting the Company's assets, as-
sess the business risks, and submits its reports periodically to the Audit Committee which in turn reviews and audits
these reports and directs accordingly. It did not turn out to the Audit Committee that there is substantial weakness
in internal control procedures set by the Company. The Executive Committee of City Cement Company recommends
10 continue improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the applicable control policies and procedures and updat-
ing them in conformity with the Company's volume of activity and nature of businesses.
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XVI: Financial Results

Below is a summary of financial results of the period from 2016 to 2020:

1- Statement of Financial Position:

Particulars 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Current Assets 488,678 821,508 577317 676,488 533,348
Non-current Assets 1,459,780 | 1526824 | 1647331 @ 1593535 1,706,162
Total Assets 1848459 | 2348333 | 2224648 | 2270023 | 2239510
Liabilities and Equity - - - - -
Current Liabilities 79,620 67,932 71197 154,496 171,879
Non-current Liabilities 23,797 23153 11,542 10,062 8,188
Total Liabilities 103,418 91,086 82,738 164,558 180,067
Equity - - - - -
Capital 1,400,000 | 1,892,000 | 1,892,000 | 1,892,000 | 1,832,000
Statutory Reserve 175470 153421 134411 123314 113983
Other Reserves (2115) (L,417) - - -
Retained Profits 271,685 213,042 115,498 90,151 53,460
Total Equity 1845041 | 2,257,246 | 2141909 & 2105465 2,059443
Equity and Liabilities 1848459 | 2348333 | 2224648 | 2270023 | 2,239510

e 0On 07/03/1441H, corresponding to 4/11/20189, the Board's recommendation was declared decreasing
the capital by 26% and compensating the shareholders. On 06/01/1442H, corresponding to 25/08/2020,
the Extraordinary General Assembly was held regarding the decrease of capital and the Company's cap-
ital decrease was approved; thus, the Company's new capital became SR 1,400,000,000 instead of SR
1,892,000,000.

The chart below shows the development of assets and equity during the five years from 2016 to 2020:

2016-2020 Assets & Equity (SR million)

2500 —
B Assets ®
2000 |- Equity ™
1500 [
1000 |
500

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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2- Statement of Income: Value in Thousands of Riyals
2020 2019 PAONRS 2017 2016
Net Sales 572,729 531,377 344,896 535,393 601,888
Cost of Sales (315,769) | 300,264 244,183 406918 345,813
Gross Profit 256,960 231112 100,713 108475 256,075

Total General, Administrative, Sale and
, (36,913) (36,080) (31,115) (27,082) (25,319)
Marketing Expenses

Other Revenues/ Expenses 10157 10,468 52,188 4,082 251

Zakat 9711 15,402 13,000 (12,169) (14,700)

Net Income of the Year 220,493 190,097 112312 93,306 216,307

Dividend 122 1.00 0.59 049 114
3- Summary of Statement of Cash Flow: Value in Thousands of Riyals

Particulars | 2020 | 2019

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 381,827 330,929

Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities 234,554 (492,283)

Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities (634,876) (78,559)

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (18,394) (239913)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Start of the Year 68,455 308,369

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of the Year 50,061 68,455

e The Company's financial statements of the fiscal year ended 31/12/2020 form an integral part of this
report.

XVII: Profits

1- Company's Profit Distribution Policy

The Company's policy in distributing its net annual profits relies on what is indicated in the Company's Articles
of Association and the availability of the liquidity required to fulfill the payment of the strategic investments
and projects of the Company. Profits are distributed as follows:

1. The Company shall set aside aminimum of 10% of its 3. Of the balance of profits, a first payment will be distrib-
net profits to create a statutory reserve, The Ordinary uted to the shareholders in at least (1%) one percent
General Assembly may decide to discontinue setting of the paid-up capital.
aside such percentage when said reserve reaches half

4. Apercentage of no more than 10% ten present, after

of the Company’s capital. the foregoing, will be designated as Board's remuneration

2. The Ordinary General Assembly may, based on the in compliance with the regulations and instructions
Board's suggestion, set aside a certain percentage issued by the Ministry of Commerce and Investment
of the net profits to create a consensual reserve and in this respect. Then, the balance will be distributed to
designate it for a specific purpose or specific purposes. the shareholders as additional share of profits.
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2- Distribution of Profits during 2020

e The Board of Directors in its meeting No. (6-2020/5) held on Thursday 19/03/1442H, corresponding to
05/11/2020 made a recommendation on the distribution of cash profits of the first half of 2020 from the
balance of the retained profits totaling (SR 140,000,000) in (SR 1) per share.

XVII: Audit of 2020

1- Appointment of the Company's Auditor for 2019 and Q1 of 2020

The Company's Ordinary General Assembly agreed in its meeting held on Monday 08/11/1441H, corresponding to
29/06/2020 to appoint Dr. Mohamed Al-Amri and Co. to audit, examine and review the financial reports for the Q2,
Q3 and Q4 of the fiscal year 2020 and Q1 of 2021 and determine its fees.

2- Appointment of the Company’s Account Controller for 2019

The Auditor's report shows that the Company's financial statements for year ended 31/12/2020 is free from ma-
terial misstatement, and there are no reservations on them.

3- Accounting Standards

The financial statements have been prepared according to the international accounting standards that have been
adopted and approved by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA). There are no differences
from these accounting standards on the auditing of the Company's financial statements.

Thanks and Recognition

In conclusion, the Board of Directors in this occasion is pleased to extend its great thanks and gratitude to
the Custodian of the Two Holy Mosques King Salman bin Abdulaziz Al Saud, may Allah preserve him, and to his
Crown Prince HRH Prince Mohamed bin Salman bin Abdulaziz Al Saud, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of
Defense and to our wise government. The Board of Directors beseeches God Almighty to protect the leaders
of this country, grant success to our wise government for the good of this homeland and citizens, protect this
country from every evil and maintain the blessing of security, safety and peace.

Besides, the Board of Directors also extends thanks and recognition to the Ministry of Energy, Industry and
Mineral Resources, the Ministry of Commerce, the Ministry of Investment, Capital Market Authority, the Na-
tional Center for Monitoring Environmental Compliance and all relevant government authorities for their
continuous collaboration and support as well as the shareholders and clients for their precious support and
confidence and the Company's personnel for their fruitful efforts.

And Allah is the Grantor of success

Board of Directors
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naot be communicaled in our report because the adverse comsequences of doing 30 would ressanably be
expecied io outweigh the public interss benefits of such commanication,

Por Dv. Mobsmed Al-Amm & Ca.,

F 'J.:’ o ) 't
Certified Public Accouniand
Registrabion Mo, 33

Diste: 1s RAJAR 1843 (H)
Corespondiag te: 18 FERRUARY 2021 (G)
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Htmﬂmﬂhlmd-ﬁnmmmmmummmuﬂq
of the auadit and significam msdh findings, including any sigeificans deficiencies in imemal contrel that we
identify during cur awdit.

Wi alicr provide those charged with govermance with & stalensest that we have compdied wish relevant
etkical requirements regarding independence, and 10 communicate with them oli relstionships and other
maatlers (hat may ressonably be thoughn 1o besr on our independence, snd where applicable, relovant
prevEnLive BeanT.

From the maniens coinaniumicases] with those charged with governasce, we determine those marers that were
of mast significance in the audit of the financisl slements of the current poriod and are therefore the key
andit matters. We describe these matters im owr sudivor’s repont unless lanw ur regulation prociudes public
dissSuiare about the maner, af when, in extreanely rare circumstances, we detanmine that o matier shoubd
noL be comnmanicalid i our report beesuse the advarse consequences of doing so would ressonably be
expectad 1o ourweigh the public imterenl benfits of such commenleativn,

J —
__.-"'__:. - ""'"_".L o
Cerified Public Accounian
Hegntraion Mo, 331
Dt 16 RALAR 1442 (H)
Corresponding to; 28 FERRUARY 2021 (G)
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CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Sawdi Joint Stock Company

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A5 AT X1 DECEMBER 2020

(o Saudi Riyals)

CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Sandi Joint Stock Company

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR EXDED X1 DECEMBER 2024

Aszris

slance As wi 31 Deoember

Nom-currend assets
Property, plant snd equipment
Right of use assets
Investments in aquity instruments o fair
vakue through other comprehensive income
Intangible assets

Total iof-currenl dtdels

Cuorreni ssseis

Imventory

Tmde receivables
Imwestmenns in equity instrunsents af fair
valug through peofit or loes
Preprymenis and ather receivablas
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current asscts

Tatnl ssscts

Equity and Liabilitiss

Equity

Share capital

Stanmory reserve

Dlser peserves

Retzined samings

Total equity
Limbillilics

MNon-curment Habiliises

Employees’ end-of-service benefits
Mon-cument partion of lesse lHability
Pmiﬂmfﬂ'rnhhﬂiiﬁmnrlmaﬂﬂmw
renchise lHeense

Tolal ion-curreni Hahillkes
Current Habliles

Trade payables

Current portion of lease liabiliny
Actrual and olber pavables
Provision for makat

Total carrent Halilities

Twinl liabilicles

Total equity snd labilities

As at
2019 1 January 2019

Doles 2000 (Reststed) = (Restated)

5 LASLG4907 1518273857 1,580,031 396

6 2779041 54414859 A

a
3,128,578 2,951 240 E

206, 708 336,200
LASTBO115 1526824264 1,580,367 686

148146260 212,916,156 273,666,361

9 39,769,398 39,774,943 41,450,221

ik
242,098,817 485,840,530 10,193,195

I 10603307 14,521,083 18.420,438

2 5006188 68455784 8365107
ABBETROT0 uﬁﬁjﬁ: £52, 508,322
LMEATINES  ZHEII060 2B 76 (K

13 1, 400,000,000 1 B9 2000000 1, 892,000,000

13 175470602 153,421,380 134,411,672
(1,115,616) (1.417.014) {15147
m 213,242,163 117.834,788
LRSI 2257.748,529 2144174313

14 17778 14,065,654 11,541 606

:i - 2482552 -

6,201 5,962,854
23,797,300 23153574 17.504,460
16,744,015 15,124,667 14,526,719

3 2413041 2,198,704 ;

:: 0,752,168 38,043 343 43,508,613
9,711,421 | 13,161
79,620,641 67.932,937 Ta,ﬁ"}'!ggs
13418041 91,086,531 BR, 701,695
L4848 = L. 060 2232ETE008

Finance Mamper

Edrees Abo Algasem M

The accompanying netes froan (1) o {35) form an iniegral pan of these financial m
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{In Sawdi Rivals)
For the year ended
M December
pd i 2019
Motes e (Restated)

Sales 19 STLTIOEET 531377516
Ciost of siles (315,769.453)  (300.264.814)
Gross profit 156,960,234 2301012702
Sclling and marketing expenses M [RT40,18% (B.63B.575)
CGencral and sdministrative expenses 2 (ZRATIITM (29.442.396)
Operating profit ITAMTO6E 195031731
(xains on changes in Mir valse investments in equity instruments 0 SO057087 3419452
Oher incoms 2 IS H.3406.561
Finance cosl 23 (934,50 {1057 905)
Provisams of expecied credit loss expense ¥ [Za0,000) (230057}
Mt prodit for the year befors zakat II0IN45NE 205499882
Zokat expense 15 (711421  (15402,799)
Net profit for the year I‘ﬂﬂ.ﬂa‘m 150,047,083
e off wiber comprefensive income
Items that will noi be reclassified subsequently 1o profit or Juss:
Giains on changes in fair value of invesiment in equity instruments T 26,738 -
Actuarial bosses cn re-measurement of end of service benefits 14 [(97833T) (1,344.857)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2ITHLSIS 188755210
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per shure of nel profit for the vear . T | 1,06

Fimsnce Manager {W
| Majed Bin ABdulrshman Al-Osailan

The accompanying notes from (1) 10 (38) form an integral part of these financlal statement
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e |n g ﬂgpg | CITY CEMENT COMPANY
: §,~2 = iggggl: g A Swati Joint Stock Company
g =g]:"f =8 ZAZEOE A9 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
- = FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
- { I Sanuchi Riynds)
= k-
E [ 8 5. He BEEe 3 For the year suded 31 December
§% %*ﬁ E E'Egﬁl % 2020 2019
aolfl  ZHEE EZER Operating aetivities
@ et peofit for the year befors zakad 230204538 205,499,882
li & =l = | ﬁ Dhepreciation B1.506,558 51,271,238
E == #8 = 3 Gains on changes in fair valoe of investment in equity instruments (5,057.98T) (3419.452)
ii 3 E}m ; §u§l " E E Provision of expected credit loss expense 240,000 239,957
b [ L ! Prowvision of ohsolescence inventory expense 2, HH, THM) W00
'i Bl iyosa” AGOF SAria hanilis 226749 ety
a4 't & E - Finamee cost 934,530 LO57.905
o 3 E :I i Changes In:
§I = |5 & g Iventories 65,769,895 59,750,205
e = = s |& -5 Fraule meceivahhes (234,425, 1435321
| Prepayments and ather receivabiles 1,917,778 4,308,355
= § Todepmibe Leissa  sorses
Accrual Iil!ﬂlﬂ'h l,m
5 ;'E_ Cash from operation 304,026,818 %ﬁ,]lmm
i iy 43 2 Zakal differences nnd withholding tax . (3.917415)
h - - = Zakai paid (11,656243) (12,990,984
z Employess” end-of-scrvice benefits paid (42882)  (1A79553)
5 3 g .E Net cash flows generated from operating wetivithes 381,927 330,929,158
Purchass of investment in equily instraments at FYTPL (SEOLROD080) (372,400,000
g ~ E = §, Hale of investment in equity instruments at FYTPL B29,600,000 0,171,817 :
E %i 2 Purchase of investmsent in equaty instraments st FVOC] : (2,951 340)
5 . } g Puscharse of property. plant and equipment asd Cagital work in progress (I4245974)  (17.081,226)
i Puschase of intangible asssis . {21,830)
Eg . % Net cash flows generated from / {used in) investing sctivities 134,554,076 (497 283 079
3 B § i S Repyies of i i (on 00,00
- EE = § ¥ F 5 = paid s (140,000,000)  (75.680,000)
i e E 1 :5 S8z Repaymens of lease Hability {2876,315) (2,579,399)
S8 %% kE t-iit- E E Net cwsh flows used in financing activities (6M4.876315) (7H559,399)
E =, - Net in cash and cash equivalents 1 -
G= : change in cash (18,39459)  (239.913323)
o = i i i_ “ _l _I E g Cash and cash exquivalents af the beginaing of the year 1oy
§ ﬁ;ﬂ' -2 g = - R g B Cash and cash equivulents ut the cnd of the vear 30,061,188 68,455,784
¥ ESE ipk g 2'! i %i Nua-cash (ransactions from investing activities
2 EEE ni"" ig ; 8 :i En E g Transfers from work in progress to property, plant and equipment 1516429 137917932
; i ikl 7 o g
Eﬂ 52 3E358%3 E igx:g &d gﬂ-&_ _ﬁgﬂﬁ
Edrees Abo Algasem Mafed Bin Abdubrahman AlCwsailan

The acconpanying notes from (1) to (35) form an imegral part of these financial stalements.




CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Snudi Joint Siock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Al amcumts in Sasudi Riyals unless olberwise staed)

I COMPANY AND ACTIVITY

LI Establishment of the Company

City Cement Company (*“the Company™), is a Saudi joint stock company, established under Ministerial Resobution
No. 804 and dated 12/5/1426 (comesponding to: 1&/6/2005) and registered in Riyadh under Conmercial Register
Mo, 1010210441 daded 1475/ 1426 (comesponding to: 2006/2005) and Industrial License Mo. 1163 dated TA/1476
(comesponding toc7/2005) and rencwed with No. 390 dated 10/2/143% (cormespording 1o:10/11/2016), The
Compeny operates under a material quarry license according 1o the mining regulations issued by Roval Decree
Mo 216 dated 28771425 (cormesponding fo: 12972004 ) and its duration & thirty Hijra years stanting fron the date
of the license, and the Company has the rght io request & similar period of renewal of this hicense subject bo the
approval of the Ministry of Industry and Minarml Resourees.

The Company obtained the following branches commercial regisiers:

Dute
Branch same CR No. Hijri Georgtan
Branch of ity cement company for contracting 1010356028 16-1-1434 29.11-2012
Groen Solutions Company for Environmentul Servipes 1010664201 10-3.1442 26-10-2020

The Company's fiscal year is |2 months from the beginning of January until the end of Decemnber of sach
calendar vear,

1.2 The nuture of the company's activity

The Company's activity is the production of onfinary portiand cement and sulphate reststant coment, the import
uﬂmﬁmnfrdknﬁuhﬁnnﬁhmm*s;ﬂuummﬁqnmmwwmﬂ
municipal waste, and peoducing aliemative fucks after obtaining the necessary ficenses and specialized sub-
coniracts.

I3 Company capital

City Cemeont Company hlpﬂrﬂchhuwlmmllﬂdmﬂlﬂwﬂpimm Its share capital was
SAR 1.892.,000,000 divided info 189,200,000 shares with 8 nominal value of 10 Saudi Rivals of each In
accondance with the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly on 25 August 2020, the capital was reduced
by Saudi Riyals 892,000,000 by distributing the amount in cash o the sharcholders.

mw'saﬁhﬂmmmmmzmmmmqu 12 Jamuary 2021,
ard the Company's share capital has become Saudi Rivals 1.400,000,000 divided into 140 million shares of equal
value with a nominal walue Saudi Rival 10 of each, all of the Company's shares sre cash and ordinary sharcs, and
the proceduures for ncoreditation in the commercial register were completed on Jumads 1118, 1442, comesponding
o 31 January 2021, and therefons the share capital has been amended in the financial satements.
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CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Al smousts in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise sinted)

3. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These financinl stsiements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and viher stanands and pronouncement that are issued by the Saudi
Organization for Certified Public Accountants (“S0CPA™),

The financinl staiements an: prepared on a historical vost busis, except for the following significant items included
m the semement of financial position in relation to the imvestmenss In equity instruments thal are measured =t fair
valpe,

These finuncial stwements are presented in Saudi Riyals (“SART), which I the functional and presentation
currency of the Company.

L1 New standards, amendments to standards, und interpretation

The Company has applicd the following standards and amendments for the first time for their angsal reporting
perind commencing | Janusry 2020,

Amewdment to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”  definition of a business
This amendment revises the definition of a business. According 10 feedback received by IASE, application ol the

carrent guidance is commonly thought 10 be too complex, and it results in 1ov many transactions qualifying s
i i

Amsendments fo [AS [ und [AS ¥ on the definirion of material

These amendments to IAS 1, “Presemation of financial statements™, and IAS § “Accounting policies, changes in
acoounting estimates and errors”, and consequential amendments 1o other [FRSs:

= Usea consistent definition of maseriality throughout IFRSs and the Concepieal Framework for Financial
Feporting;

- Clarify the explanation of the delinition of materiak and
Incomarate some of the guidance in IAS | abowul immaterial information,

Amendments to [FRS 9, IAS 3% and IFRS 7 - Imterent Rave Benchmiark Reform (phase 1)

These amendments provide certain reliels in connection with inrerest e henchmark reform. The rellefi relabe 1o
hedpe accoumting and have the ¢ffest that IBOR reform should not generally, cause bedipe accounting to tarminste.,
Hawever, any hedge inefTectivensss should continue 1 be reconded in the statement of peofit of loss.,

mtﬂﬁmﬁhﬂmﬁmbﬂﬁmmﬂhpﬂmﬁﬁlﬂiﬂ%ﬁ#ﬂgh
yeEir,



CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Al amounts in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise staed)

32 Stamdurds bsucd bt nst yet effective

Following are the new standards and amendments, 1o standards which are effective for annual periods beginning
on o0 after | January 2021 and earlier application is permitted, however. the Company has not early adopied them
in preparing thess financisl stements.

Amendments fo [45 | “Preseniation of fimancial statements™ - on clacdfication of Nabilities

These marmow-scope amendments 0 JAS | “presemation of financial statements”, clarify that liskilitics are
clusified as cither cument or non-current, depending on the rights that exisl at the end of the reporting period.
Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or even after the reporting dase (for example: the
receipt of a waiver of a breach of covenant), The amendment also clarifics what IAS 1 means when it refirs to the
=sefllenment™ of a liability.

Amerndmivnis fo IFRS 3, 1AS 16 amd [AS 37
I[FR% !“Mmfﬂwfﬂm"m:mﬁm in IFE3 3 to the Conceptunl Framewerk for Financial
Reporting without changing the accourting requinements for business combinaions,

- 1AS 16 “Propery, Plant and Equipment” prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of , plant

and cquipment amourns received from selling items produced while the entity ks prepari asget for its
Intended use. Instead, an entity will recognize such sales procesds and related cost -I'I:Ptﬂ?iliﬂrl'ﬂ-

R o s i s
33 Annual improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 cvcle

These improvements are effective on or after | Jamury 2021,

- m“FMtLMIMIEHE%mmﬁMMHMEFhM
- ;m;ﬁéwmwﬁ?l?mmmmwmm
3.4 Fimancial insdruments

The Company initinlly recognises financial instraments on the trade date 22 which the C
to the contrmctual provisions of the instrument. . TR T

The Comaparry classifies its firancial ssets in the fodlowwing méasurement calepories:

= these 1o be measured subsequently at fasr value (cither through OC1 or through profit or loss), and
= those ko be mensured of amortised con

The classification depends on the Company 's business moded for ing the financs
stz - » barsanes mnaging the linancial assets and the contractual
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CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joine Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
{All amounts in Saudi Rivals unbess olherwise stated)

The Company derecognises o firancial ezl when the contrmctunl righis o ihe cash flows from the asser explre,
or il trnsfers the rights (o receive the comtmetunl cash (lows on ibe financisl assa in 2 warssalon in which
subsnmially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any inlerest in the
transfirned financial asset that is created ar netained by the Company is recognised a% a separate sssel or Bability,

Financial asscts and linbilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial position
whien, and only when, the Company has a legal rght to offSet (he amounts and ntends either (o sefile oo o pet
hasis or 10 realise the asset and seabe the lability simulaneously.

The Company has the follonwing financial assets:

Finamchinl Assels af Amoriised Cost

Financial assets beld for collection of contractual cash flows wiwre those cash lows represent solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI") are measured at amortised cost. A giin or boss on a debi investment subscquently
measured al amortised cost and not part of a hedging relafionship is recognised In the staement of profit or loss
vihen the asset is derecognised or impaired. [nterest income from these financial msets is included in finance
Income uring the effective interest rate methad.

Flmancial evers ot falr valwe hrowgh sther comprehensive Imoome

The debt instrument i measured a1 fair valoe by other comprehensive income only if Tt meets the following
conditions and is not recognized al fair value through changes in net assers:

#  The sisct is beld in o besiness moded that i desigaed o hold assets o colleet comtraciual cxsh flows and sdl
the finsecisl assets

*  The conrsctal rerms of the financial sieet kesd on specific daties o cash flows thai are only the paymonts from
the principal asaunt and inkerest on The principal amoant dise,

Dchiﬂmurﬁundlﬁ:mﬂm@uhmmm“wwmﬂ fair
@uwgmmmﬁuwmmmﬁmwhmmiummum
Financing incame, foreign exchange gnins and losses ane carried af the statensent of peofit or Joss.

Equity instrunsents: On initial recogaition, to invest in non-iraded shares, the Company may apply an imevocable
qﬂmhnﬁhm changes in falr valoe in other compretwensave income. The presented nmeumns in other
compredemd ve income e not subssquemily transferred 1o the statersent of profit or loss.

Flstamoial avvets af faie value Brrough chamges by med ady

All other financial assets are classified as messured ot fiair value through the statensent af profit or loss (for
example: shares held for trading and debt sécurities thai are not clissificd hased on smonized cost or at fuir value
through other comprehensive income).

Impairment of financial asscis
For acctunts receivables, the Company applics the simplified approach, which requines expocied Hietime losses

I be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. Expected Toss mres were derived from Ristorical
information of the Compary and are adjisted to reflect the expected fiture omcome,



CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2620
(All amounts in Saudi Rivals unbess otherwise statad)

Financial liabilitics

Fingneal Habilities sne recognised nilislly on the trade date, which is the date that ihe Company becomes a parly
io the comtractim] provisions of the instrament.

Financial [sabilatses are recognised imitially af fiir value plus any dinectly stiributsble tansaction costs. Subseguest
10 initinl recognition these financial [Eabilitics are measured ot amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The Company derccognises a financinl lability when s contractaal obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Fimemeial assets and figbilitics are offset and the net amount 15 presented in the smement of financial position
when, and only when. the Company has a kegal right 1o offset the amounts and intends either to sette on a net
basis or 1o realise the asset and setibe the liability smultansosly,

WNon-derivative financial liabilities of the Company comprise of trade and other payables.

De-recogmition of Minancial labilities

The Company derecognises the financial lisbility (or part of the financial Rability) from its statement of financial
position when it is extinguished; that is when the obligation specilied in the contruct & paid or cancelled or

Amoriieed cosi for linancial assel or Habilily

The amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability is the amount 2t which the financial asset or financial
[zabwlity i measured af initial recognition less prepayments of the principal amouns, plus or less the cumulative
mmnmnﬁmuaiugmﬂﬁnﬂw interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the amount

38 Revenwe recognition

Rievenue represents the fair valoe of the consideration received or recelvable for goods sold, net of returns, trade
discoumis and vadume rebates. The Company recogrizes revenue when a customer obtains controls of the goods at
a point in time e, on defivery and scknenw bedgement of goods.

The goods arc ofien sold with retrospective volume discounts based on aggregate sales over o 12 monihs period.
Revenue from these sales is recognised hased on the price specified in the contract. net of the cstimaned volume
discounts. Accumulaled experience i wsd b0 esiimate and provide for the dircounts, using the expested value
maedhod, and revense is only necognised 1o the eaent that it i highly probable that & sipnificant reversal will pot
occur. The related liahility (included in trade and other payables) is recognised For expected volume discounts
payable bo customens in relation to sales made during the yeur,

Mo clement of financing componant is desmed present as the sabes are made either on eash or on credit wem
congistent with market practice.

A6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, Flant and Equipment are measured at cost, hess acoumulated deprecintion snd necumulazed Impairment
loss, if =ny. Cost comprises: of expenditure that is directly attributsble io the scquisition of the ssset, Cost includes
the reclusifications from equily of any gaine or losses on qualifving cash flow hedpes relating to purchases of
Property, Plant and Equipment. Cost includes expenditares that ane directly aftriutabie 1o the acquisition / growing
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A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMRER 2020
(Al amounts in Susdi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

off the plant till its maturity. Any gain or los on disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognissd
in: the: statemend of profit or loss =it .

Subsequent expenditure i capitalised only i # i probable thar the flsure economic benefits associated with: the
expenditure will fow bo the Company and amount can be measired reliably.

mmhw-ﬂmm parts thar mist be available for the production lines at its plant, and
'Fmﬂ“ umder property and equipment, and subject to deprociation over the wseful life of the asset nssociated
wi Sparng parts.

The useful life of property, plant snd equipment are reviewed at the end of cach year. I the estinated usefid life
is different from previously estimated, the carrying amount of the asset is depreciated over the remaining useful
life after roassessment of the year in which the revision was made.

The cost less estimated residual value is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives of the agsets by using the following annual depreciation res:

Machinery and Equipment 4%
Buildings and roads I=10%
Makile cquipment 6.67 %
Vehiches 20 %
Furniture and fixtures 15%

Land and capital work in progress are nol deprecisied.

Capital work in progress st year end includes cetain assets, that have been soquired bus are ot ready for their
mpmﬂmmmmmhﬂhuhﬂmumummﬂmWNMmmim
tlriu'db;lmr..

The zisets’ resicual values, w==fid lives and impairment Indicators are reviewed at each fimancial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if considered necessary.

If significant parts of an item of property, plam and equipment have different uselul lives then they ane sccounsed
37 Leases

The Company assesses whether a conimet {50 bease or contsing a bease. The contract s o lease or contains & lease
ifiit gives the right of use a specific asset for a period of ime in exchange for 3 compensation.



CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(ANl amounts in Saudi Rivals unless otherwize stated)

Right-of-use assets and bease lkabilities
Assets and liabllites arising from a leass are initially messured on a present value basis.

Rightevf-nse axsely are megsured af cost comprising the following:
= the amount of the initial measurement of lease Hability;
= amy lense payvments made at or before the commencensent dale bess any lexss incentives received:
- any initial dinect cost: and - restorfion costs.

Right-of-use astets are subsequenily measured at cost kess accumulated depreclation.

Lease labitities incliede the nef present value of the following lease paymen:
= fioced payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable:
variable bease prymenis that are based on an index or & rate;
= amounis expiced Lo be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantess;
= the exencise price of a purchase oplion if the lessee is reasonsbly connin 1o exercise that option; and
payments of penalties for ierminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option,

The bease payments are discounted using the incremental bormowing rate. being the rale that the lessee would have
b pay b hamosw the funds necessary %o obtain an asset of similar value in a similar sconomie environment with
similar perms and conditions.

Puyments associaed with shon-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized on 2 straight-line basis
25 an expense in the Staement of Profil or Lovs. Shoni-term lexses are leases with a léase term of 12 months or
bess. Low-value assets comprise small items relsting 1o office equipment.

Lemse terms are negotiated on an individual besis and comnin 3 wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the bease term, management considiers ol fiscts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
1o exercise an extension option, or not evercise a termination option. Extension options are only included in the
lesse: ferm if the bease i3 reasonably certain 10 be extended. In determining the lease term, the management
gencrally considers cenain faclors including historical lease durstions and the costs and husiness. dsnuption
required to replace the leased asse.

38  lotangible assets

Intangitrle assets that include software programs, which acquired by the Company and have s finite usefil life (5
years), are measured at cost bess accumulated amortization and any aceumuluted impaiment losses,

The Company spplies snmml depreciation mics 1o Its Intangible assets;
- Software licenses 0%

Suhscquent expenditare

Subssquent expenditire are capltalized only when it increases the future ecomomic benefits embodied in the

specific asset 10 which it relates. All other expenses inourred internally are recognized in peafit or loss when
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Amaoriizaiion

Amortization I8 changed to the cost of intangible assets less the residund value using the straight-line method over
their estimated asefil lives, and recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

The resicdual vatues of imangible nssets, their usefil lves and impairment indicators are reviewad af the end of
ench financial year and adjusted prospectively whene necessary,

1.9 lmpairment of non-financial asscts

Non-financial assets are reviewsd al each reporting dute o identify circumstances indicating occurrence of
impmdrmend loss or neversal of impairment loss, If any such indication exisis, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated i order 1o determing the extent of the impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss (i any).

When it s not possible 1o estimase the recoverable amount of an individual weset, the Company cstimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-genevating unit to which the aes heloags. When o reasonable and consistent basis
af allocation can be identifiex, corporate wscts ine also allocated 1o individual cash-penerating units, or ofherwis
they are allocated to the smullest Company of cash-generating wnits for which a ressonable and consister
allocation basis can be identified. Intangible sxsets with indefinite usefil Tives and intangible assets not et
available for use ane tested for impairment al least annoally, and whenever there s an indication that the asset may
be impaired. Recoverable amoun i the higher of fair value less comts to sell and value in wse. In assessing value
in erse, the estinaed future cash flows are discounted 10 their present value using dissount rte tha reflacts current
marke! asscssments of the tims: value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset for which the estiniates of future
cash flows have nol been adjusded.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-genemting unit) Is estimated o be hess than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset {or cash-gencrating unit) is reduced o its recoverable amoant. An impakrment loss is
recogmised immeedisely Inothe satement of profit or loss

When an impiirment loss subsequently reverses, the camrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increasad in the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does ot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairmaent fss. been recognised for the
m(uma-Mminnhmmamnrmmﬂmiﬁmﬂmmhm
siztement of prodk or loss.

X110 Inveniories

Invemories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost i determined uming the weighed
average method. Cost comprises all direct manufacturing expenditure based on the nomsal level of activity and
trampariation and handling costs. Net realisable value comprises estinmed selling price Jess further production
conds tn completion and appropriate selling and distribution costs. Allowance is made, where necessary for slow
menving inventories, Cost of invenlories i revognised 5 an expense and included in cost of sales,

Spares are vadued al lower of cost or met realizable walue, Cost Is desermined on the weighted mverage cost basis.
An allowance for obsalete and slow-maving fiems, if any, i estimated at cach reporting dase.

A1 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of statement of financial position, cash and bank balances include bank bakances, cheques in
hand and deposits with original maturities of three mnnths or less, if any.
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312 Zakat provision

Zaknt is provided for in accerdance with General Authosity of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT™) regulations. Adjustments
nrising from final kst swseiments sne recondad in tbe period m which siach ascessments are mada.

313 Emplovee Retirement benefits

Retinement benefits are payable fo all employees employed under the terms and conditions of the
Labowr Laws spplicable on the Company, on termination of their employment contracts.
The Company"s obligation in respect of defined bemefit plan ks calewlated by estinating the amount of future
benefits that employees ave esrmed in cument and prioe periods snd discounting thal amound 1o emive al presant
ke,

The Company sc15 the assumplions used in determining the key clements of the costs of mecting such fumre
obligations, These assumptions are sct after consultation with the Company’s actuarics and Include those used 1o
determine regular service costs and the financing elements related to the linhilities. The caleulntion af defined
benefln abligarion is performed by a qualified achury using the projecied unl credin method.

Re-measurement of defined benefit liability, which comprise of sctuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediasely in the stmement of othér comprehensive income. The Companry deternings interest expense on the
defined benefit obligation for the period by applying the discount rate used 1o measure the defined benefit
obligation &t the beginning of the annual period, taking into sccound any change in the net defined benefit
obligation during the period s a result of contribusions and benefit payments, Net inerest expense and other
expenses nelated 1o defined benefit are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Li4 Provisioms

A peovision is recognised i, s a result of past evenss, the Company has a present lagal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated refiably, and it s probable that an ourflow of economic henefi will be required 1o senthe the
abligation,

LIS Sialwlory reserve

In accosdance with Company s by-laws and the Regulations for Companies in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the
Compuny is required to recognise a reserve comprising of 1084 of [ profit for the year. This reserve is curesly
il distributable fo the Shareholders,

06 Earmings per share

Basic and diluted camings per share (If any) are presented for ordinary shans. Basic camings per share is
calculated by dividing the peofit or loss anributable 1o ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
avernge number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the year, adjusted by the number of onfinary shares
repurchased or issned during the period. The diled camings per shane are adjusied by adjusting the profit or loss
mrributable to ordinary aquity halders of the Company and the weighted average nunsber of shares outanding
dsrimg the year with the effoct of all potential dilusive ordinary shares.
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L17 Segmenial reporiing

Opernting segment is a component of the Company that engages in basiness activitics from which it cems revenue
and imurs costs incloding mcome and expenses related to trassactions with any other elements of the company.

LI8 Fair value messurement of financial instruments

Fair vl is (he price thal widld be received to w2l an a52el or paid fo iransfer o lability in an orderdy meaciion
herween marker participanes m the mensurement dare. Uindertying the definition of fiir value is the

that the Company is a going concém and there is po intention or nequirement bo curtail materially the scale of its
operations o [ undertake a fransscdion on adverse lemms.

A fimancial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange dealer, broker, mdisiry Company, pricing service, or regulalory agency, and thise prices
represent solual ond regulary ooourring market transsolions on on orm's length basis,

When measuring the fair value the Company uses markel observable data & far a5 pousible. Fair vilues are
cateporiaed into different bevels in & fair value hierarchy besed on the inputs wed inthe valuation iechniques a5
Tollowes,

Level 1: Quobed prives {unadjusted) in aclive markels for identical assets or labilitles thar can be aoosssed s the
mesuremeni dibe,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are obsarvable for the asset o finbility, either
directly {i.¢. as prices) or indineetly (i.c. derived From prices),

Lawed 3: Inpats for the asset of lmbilily Uhal are nol based on observable market dota {nohservable inpues).

L1%  Forcign currency translation

Foreign curmency transactions are trunsdated indo Snudi Rivals af the rates of exchange prevailing at the time of
the mnsactions. Maonesary assets and linbilities denominsted in foreign currencies at the reporting daie are
rranslated into Saudi Rivals at the exchange rates prevailing al thad date. Gains and loses. from salemant and
translation of foreign currency transactions are incloded in profit or loss.

320 Dividends

Lhividesds i« recognized in the financial statements when it is appeoved by the General Assembly of shareholders
for nmnual disiribariions.
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| HCANT A o STIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The prepamtion of the fimncial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standands
requines managament to use judgments, estimates and assumaptions thar affect the amounts of income, cxpenses,
gssots and labilities appearing in the financinl Satements, the pccompanying nofes altached to the fnanczal
staberénts, and the disclosure of contingent assets and lisbilitses, However. the ancemainty involved in thess
assumptions and estimates may bead 1o significnmt odjustments 1o the camying smount of assets or linbilities that
may b alfected mofuture periods.

In the context of applying the company's accounting policies. management has made judgmenss that have 2
material impacy on the smounts recognized i the financial ssafements. In addition fo the main sssumptions that
have been considered when assetsing the impact of future conditions on the figures appearing in the financial
statements and the related disclosures a1 the dae of preparing the financial satements, which have substantial
risks prsocinbed with them that may coge skgmificant adjestments (o the corrying vibues of wssets and lshalstes
during the neéxt financial year. The company reliad in it estimates and assumptions on the existing conditions and
svailable information when preparing the financial statements. However, existing clreumstances and assumpiions
ahoul foreseeable developments may changs 2= o resall of marked changes amd carcumstances beyand fhe control
of the Company, These changes are reflected in the assamiptions as they oceur,

L

A} Estimated usefal life of property, plant snd equipment

The cost of propery, plant and equipment deprociased over the estimared useful ife of the asset based on the
expecied wse and obsolescence of the awel, the mainterance and repair program, technical obeolescence and the
recoverable value considerations of the asser. Management reviews the residiual value of property, plant and
equipiment and wselul lives anmadly and change in depreciation charges where the mamgement believe thal the
useiil T differs 1han the past estimating.

B} Sarategic and reserve spare parts

The Company maknexing strategic and reserve spane pars inventony for two prodioction Tines in is plant, which
the management aims io mainiain for lnger periods more than one year. The management believes tha all spare
parts will be prowided with futane economic benefits from the future wie of all property, plant and equipmenl. The
mamgement reviews Spore ports thel ore in reserve equipment. which should be available 53 neoded and
depreciated with the estimated usefid life of the associated asee,

C) Aciuarial valustion of employeess” end of service benefits liabilities

The employess” end-of-service benefits liability is determined according o 8 defined unfunded benefit plan and
measured using actuarial evaluation. Actuarial evalustion includes many assumptions thal may differ from the
aciml fiture developments. These assumptions inclide the determination of the discoumt mate and futare salary
increases and temover rate. Dise to the complexities imvolved in the valustion ond its long-term nature, & defined
bemefit limhility is highly sensitive to changes in these sssumptions. Thus, all assumgtions ane reviewed once a
year o more often, as deemed necessary.

¥ Provision for rebalilitation of aress sabjeci io franchise lieense

The provision for rehabilitation of aress subject to franchise ieense B recognised m the present value of the
expected cost of rehabiliation of the site and the company's factory land. The curment value of the provision
eslimated al the expected present value of the end of the factory lifespan. and the company relied on 1he reneval
of the current quarry license after its expiry at the initial measurement of e current value of the provision,

{All amounts in Sandi Riyals unless otherwise saed)
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6. Right-of - use gssets

Cnst:
Balance ax ai 31 Docember 2009
Balance e at 31 December 2000

Accsmulated depreciation:
Balance as ui 31 December 201%
Deprociation

Balance ns ni 31 December 20240
Hed Bonk valhae:

Asal 3] December 2000
Anut 31 December 2019

Sawdi Arbian Oil Company (Arameo) o Ssadi joint 92,245

slock compasy
Caans on change in fair value
Total isrvestment in dhares

On 3 Decamibar 2019, the Board of Disectors approved

g ¥

60 | Annual Report 2020

Beuscd
feased band Building Tatal
049492 1,723,428 TBTELIH0
5949493 1723428 TTLEN0
1500204 JHRET LN e
1,800, 20 R&1,714 1E61.01E
JeD0 408 129571 4892.07T9
2.34M,084 4HLRET 3T
d, | 2aR 1292571 SoH1,B50

As ai 3 December
Shares oz kL] L
2931, 840 2051 840
26728 -
J 228578 2950 840

the Investment in Saudi Arablan O Campany (Ammeo)
shases and was subscribed in 92,245 shares with o 1lal of SAR 2,951 840, This company's SOUIREeE
wnd fin mceordance with i feture fows mmd plans. el o

Saudi Arabae (5] Company (Aramco) - A Saudi Joint Stock Company snnoueced the distribulion of cash
dividends during 2020 resuhting in dividends amoumicd SAR 1M, 163, which are included In ether ravenies (MNote

T T TR I i

8 lovesiory

Work in progress - Clinker
Finished goods

Baw materials

Spare parts

impairment in invensory

The mevement of impakrment in inventory is as follow:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Balance at the end of the yesr

9. Trude roceivables

Trade recervables
Provision for expected credit lossss

Az at 31 December As @i
2020 g 1 Janmary H%
5250346 127,526,712 177,507 461
825 5 134,445 5,901,621
17,782,703 12414379 14,976,005
69,363,977 8,240,620 75,191 270
148,146,260 213.916,158 173,666,361
A3000000) (1.000,000)
145, 146,260 212.916,135 273,606,361
As al December 31, As at
i 019 I Junuary
{Restated) 2019
: (Resiated)
1,00, 000 1 M), N .
2,000,000 . o
1000000 1, CHON, £ 2

As i 31 December

The mowement of expected credit lotses provision is & follow:

Balance af the beginning of the year
Aulditions during the year
Balance i the end of {he year

i . _Jﬂ-lﬂ -
41,36, 507 1026047
(1,491,104) (1,251,104)
39,769,398 39,714,943

As 8t 31 December

ol Ay
1. 250,104 1O01,147
_240.000 239,957
14901, 004 1.251.1

Thee trade receivables are fully covered by bank guaramiecs smounted SAR 16,500,000, and promissory nofes

emncustied o SAR 32,770, 000,
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0. L 13, Statutory reserve
In accondance with the Companies Law and the Company's Anlcles of Association (Arick 129), the Board of
As at 31 December Direcror shall transfer 10r% from the net profit of each year end to the statuory reserve, and the ond
assembly meeting of the Company coald decide to cease such transfer when it reaches 30% from the share capstal,
2020 019 This reserve Is not availsble for dividends.
Balance at the beginning of the year AR5 B40,830 10,193,195 As at 31 December
Purchases during the vear 250,800,000 522,400,000 2020 n1s
Sales during 1he year RO G0 D00 (H0171817) {Resbated)
Giakns on change in fnir value 5057957 1419452 Balamee at the beginning of the year 153,421,360 13441 1672
Balance st the énd of the year 243 098,817 485,840,830 Addition during the year 12049312 19,008, 708
Balamce at the énd of the year 175,470,692 153,421,380
The imvestments represent units in open locad imvesiment fumds with an objective of providing a reasonable ameuant
of income a5 well as liquidity from short-term investments in Saudi Riyals.
14, Emplovess' end-of-seryice benelits
The Company's podicy stated th the end-of-serviee benefit is due 1o oll employess wha comphets the qualifyi
V. Prepuvments and other receivables period of sasvic undar tha Saudh Lebour Law, ualitying
Adiall 31 Deiombor The annual enphoyes's end of service Finbility is based on sctuasial evaluation. and the most receni sciusrial
evahuntion was conducted by an appointed independent expert by the Compeny's management, using the sctuarial
020 2019 methodology of the expected crodit unit &5 &t 31 December 2020,
Advances 1o suppliers 6,549,081 9,850,687
Prepaid expenses 3,109,250 1453219 As mi 31 December
Refundable insurance E53,714 625431 20 i
others 1,091,232 361,746 Dalance at | banuary 14,160,654 11,541,606
11,803,307 14,521 083 Iriciuded fo prafii or b satemers
9 Curreni service com 2 36T 493 2,131,078
Lash and sk equivalents
Interest cost (Note 23) 478373 511,656
As mt M December
Incluikedd fn OCF
= i Actimarial losses 975,337 144 88
- [ T
Cash a1 bank = current accounts 49,968,0.4] 68,412,628 :
. Pakd (442.882) (1,479,553
Cash in hand 95,247 43,136
17347975 14,069,654
S0, 001,188 68,455,784
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Actuarial assamptions 15, Lemse linbility
Muhﬂ.mmmmmmlhmﬂnﬂtﬂlmuﬂu The following Asat 3] December
imporiant axsEmpions: 2020 _ _I-II.!
Muoar-currenl portion of lease liahilily - 2 ERT 552
A2 38 31 Dusennber Cument portion of lesse Einbility 2AIL1 2,198,704
M0 nie 2413041 5,081,256
Financial i
BE—pEOw Yo il The amount of interest expense nelated bo the Jense liability for the year ended 31 December 2000 amousted Saudi
Dioatmt ride %275 “3As Riyals 208,101 (31 December 2019: Ssudi Riyals 287,735, (Note 23),
ﬁlﬂ-ﬂ" LA} LT I Provision for rehabiliintion of
Thae preovishon movemeni i as fillow:
As mt 31 Decemiber As al
Demographic sssumptions: 020 2019 | January 2019
Withdrawal rates From 5 to 20 From 5 to 20 Financial impact of the initiel measurement of - : 5ﬁ35|4
. provision
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years ..
Balance a1 the beginning of the year 6,200 368 5967 854 g
Effective interest (Note 23} 248,05 38,514 229340
Sensitivify in defined benefit obligution Balance at the end of the year 6,449,424 B,201. 368 3962854
The qnuﬂl].rh_;.rudymn hased on a change in an assumption while holding all ather samptions constant, In
practice, this is unlikely 1o occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the 17. Accruals aad otivir pavables
sensitivity of the ensployee retinement benefits to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value December
of the employee retirement benefits calculated with the prjected unit credit method at the end of the reporting Asai 31
ptm:l}ruhmnapplh.lasmmﬂquMﬁwrﬁmmm:mﬁmmﬂmwnr — 0. amy
fimancial position & described below: Accrued expenses 14,206,204 672,236
Accroed quanry fees 19,030,595 19,156,596
EMOLOYEES® EXD OF SERVICE ecrusl for governmental authorities
Kessonabie BENIFITS LIABILITIES 4 o i i
potentisl changes Provision for vacation and travel lickets 1,608,743 7462359
Increase Decrease Board and commitier members' bonuses (Note 30) T, 400, 0 1,404,000
Driscount rate =1 4) (1%) {1,787,798) 2,140,831 Advances from coslumers 764,131 3011074
Selary increase 14 (1%) 212878 (1.799.818) :‘"’ﬂ ':“{:TT:W 277047 200,286
ue ndd s 6,955,628 1,561,072
Withdrawal rates «f ) (2% %
{=1+) (20%) (311,787) i A Others 139,960 787,034
Montality rate (-7 +) (20%) (4,292) 4301 50,782,165 38,953,343

® The VAT imspection urnil 2019 was settfled, the resulted o differences amounted to Saudi Riyals 8,236, and
the Conpany paid it in November 2020,
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18. Provision for Zakat 19, Sales
A} The main ebements of Zakal base are ns ol kows: Fﬁ;mh
As al 31 December 1020 o1y
2020 2019 {Restated)
Ordinary portiand censent 20,207,070 495,852,136
Net prodit for the year before zakat 237,146,893 195,925,985 .
& respslanl cement
Mon-current assels (1,494,433,942) (1,578,224.099) Sulphat LA RER LR 1
Nen-curment liabilitias 17,000,000 17,552,206 Export cement E Mol
o
quity 1,624,251 802 2.066,220,693 572,729,687 531,371,516
Provision for expectod credit bosses 1492104 1,251,104
Prowision for zakat ; e 20. Selling and marketing expenses
Impairment in Enventory 3,000,000 3,500,000 For the vear ended
Zakai hase 36,456,557 706,605,134 e {uﬂﬁm
Zakai rate 1.5% ST11421 17,505,128 Salaries, wages and employes's henedits ARITHID 1.E0E 633
T ;
B} The movement in Zakat pronision is as follows: m ; '
As ut 31 December Advertising and promotion 762,092 136,930
B 010 _I.L;FEI!L:'!}, Depreciation 150,532 R AIE
Blhﬂnhqulmﬂlh;w I 1,656,243 13,161 843 Subes depanment expenses 65, il &7 T
Paid during the year {11,656.243) (12.990,984) (b RIRA13 30074
Lakat difTerences - (3917415) 8,740,159 6538575
Additions during the vear ST1EA21 15,402 7949
Balance al the end of the year 2711421 11,656,243

C) During 2019, the Company received a final Zukat assessment for the years from 2006 (0 2016,

) During the year 2020, the Company recsived & final Zakaf wvsessment for 2017 and 2018

E) The Company submitted the financial statesnents and zakat revarns for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the dise amenmt and abained u contificars valld until 30 Apel 2021, oy
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SRS

1. General and sdmintstrative expenses

Sularics, wages and emplovee's benefits
Covernmental fees

Dianations

Dupreciation

Board of directors’ remuneration (Nowe 30)
Provfesional and consulting fees

Board of dincciors” sttendance allowance (Note 30)
Bank charges

Subscriptions and fiees

Reepair and mainbenamnce

Services

Wishholding tax

Rentz

Others

2. Other income

Eevenue from enviremental services

Income: from bank deposits

Gain on foreign currency tmmslation differences
Bettlement of contractors’ guarantes relention
Dividends on investments al fair value through OCI
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For the year ended 31 December
010 019
_ (Restated)

10822 455 21,399,386
1,638,233 #5592
1.614.824 o
1,582 459 1,135,509
1,400,000 1,400,000
TIE, 148 1,754,761
234,400 231,000
T87082 105011
180,348 305,839
139,593 53571
114,828 115,428
41,™1 174,230
. 541,923
358, TR 3T
IR 1TEATS 25442396

For the year eénded 31 December

pail |
2020 __(Restated)

4013668 L4#7470
1,951,488 5,631,638
104,606 &7
- 126,850
104,163 -
174015 £.346.341

CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unles otherwise stated)

13, Finance cost

Imcrest cost on employees end of service liabilily
Inderest cost on lease Habiliy

Initerest cost of provision for rehabifitation of arcas subject 1o
franchise hicense

4. Earmings per shure

For the year ended 31 December

19

b1 (Restated)
£TRIT3 531,636
208,101 M7
248,056 218514
934530 1,057,905

Basic camings per share was calcubsied by dividing the vear's net profit by the weighted svernge number of

shares during ihe year:

et prafil for the vear

Weighted average number of shares after diluted impact

Basic and dilused earnings per share from the net profit of the year

For the year ended 31 December

s
2020 (Restated)
130493117 TS0 T gD
Share Share
150,193,443 189,200,000
SAR [ Share RAR / Share
122 (K 1]

The Company reduced its share capital from Saudi Riyals 1, E92000,000 o Saudi Rivals | 400,000,000, nt
ruimimmﬂlﬁﬁnrmwmmm.whrdmimhmmﬂMnfm:
mm:mﬂmmmmmwmwaﬂmmmmmm

value of Ssudi Rivals 10 of each share, and a ioéal value of Sandi Riyals 492,000,000, and compensated the eligible

s of the share ot Ssodi Rivals 10 of ench
08031 442H (cormesponding to: 25710/2000),

sharcholders, who are entithed 1o this reduction. a1 the nominal val
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
{All mmounts in Ssudi Riyals unless otherwise stned)

15, Dividends

5.0 O 29 June 20120, the shansholders in their ordinary General Assembly Meeting approved dividends of SAR
140,000,000 (SAR | per share) which was. pid on $ November 200,

252 Tie Board of Direclors have proposed, for sharcholder’s approval at the General Assembly Meeting, a
duvidend of SAR 75,680,000 million (SAR 0.40 per share) and 4% of Company s share capital for the year
endad 31 December 2018 which was paid on 4 Apnil 2020,

26. Fimancial facilities
The Company has available financial facilities from local banks smounted to Saudi Rivals 90,7 million guaranieed

by promissory note, the Company has not wed unlil the date of the financial statements, except for what was
mientionex in Nogc 27, and there are no obligations as a result of nol using these Ficilities.

27. Costingent iabilities

The contingen! liabilitics against betters of credit ane SAR 7,200,000 for the purchase of raw materials 2 at 31
Drecembser 2020,

The contingent Habilities against lefters of gusrantee are SAR 174,290 as a1 31 December 2020

M. General

As disclosed in the financial statenments for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company received a staiement
of prosecution. The Company has assigned an exteral legal advisor to deal with this matter and make the

uﬁqrdeﬁmu.ﬁ: mmatter is still being in the phase of exchanges comespondences, and thens are no updates
o Ahis nater.

9. Seyment reportling
For ihe year ended 5t For the yesr emded
Al Devember H3H0 - A1 December 2009 -
Hevenue from Kevenue rom
environmenial envirmnmental
Cement sales EEVicE Cemenl sales Bervices
Geographical area (Nodes 19) {Note: 22) {Nute: 19) (Note: 22)
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 71,729,687 4013, 08 31,352 048 2ARTATG
Bahrain Kingdom - - 24570 %
Toial ST1.TI9.687 4.011,668 531am518 2ABNATS
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3. Trumsactions with related partis
Transactions with relused parties consist mainly in silaries, allownnos and bey executivie personne] remsneration.

Key management persomel are these who exercise authority and responsibility in directly or indirectly planning,
directing and monitoring the company’s activities, including the members of hoard mecting.

Members of the Beard of Derectons & ol receive any nemuniration Tor their role in nanaging the Company unless
approved by the General Assembly. Members of the Board of Directors receive an atiendance alkvwance for Board
and Bourd Commitlee meetings. Executive Directors receive fived remuneration as a result of their direct duries
and responsibilitics.

The Tollewing tabile illetrates details of renuneration and compéndation paid 1o Directors and Key Management
Parsornel,

For the vear ended ai
31 December

Relaied partics Maiure of the transaction U me

Members of Boand of the directoes Salaries, wages, amd equivabent and boand
and Key Management Personng] remumeration and atendance allowances B323087  6.600.832

3. Fimancial instruments and risk management
The Company"s sclivities expose il by a varsely of Aroncial ke, markel rsk. crodit risk, and Hguidsty risk.

Financial instnaments in the Company”s statement of financinl position Inclode imvestmems & falr value throagh
profit of boss and other comprehensive income. cash and cash equivalents, other assels, acoound receivable, and
ofher |ishilities.

a) Market risk

Market price risk is the risk that valee of a financial instrament will Muctsibe a5 & resall of changes in marked
prices, such s, commission mics, commadity prices and foeeign cumency exchange rates. will affect the
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
n:witmwuﬂﬂﬁdmﬁﬂﬂkummﬁﬂhmhmuﬁhwﬂmﬁm
e netrTL

Commbwion rale rish

Commisslon rate Risk is the expodune associated with the effect of Muctiusiions in e prevailing commission
rabes an ie Company ‘s financil position and cash Nows.
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Currency risk

Currency risk Is the sisk that the valoe of financial instraments will lschuste die to changes in foreign exchange
rabes. Currency risk arises when filere commercial ransactions and recognized etz and linbilites are
denominated in cumency that is mot the Company”s curmency, The Company exposure fo fareign currency risk i
primanly Hemsed to transsctions in United State Dollars (=USD™) and Euro.

The fluctuation in <xchange rates agains USD and EL'R are mondtored on & continooas basls, Quantitstive dats
regarding the Company s exposaire b currency fisk is represented by:

CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Al ansounts in Sawdi Rivals unbess olherwise stated)

U.5. doflar Euro
31 December 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 3319967 1,817,757
Advances to suppliers 170,829 545,813
“Trade payables (670,9406) {164,995)
1,919,890 2,198,578
31 December 1019
Cirsh and cash equiviibents 6.916,158 4,685,655
Advances to suppiliers 141,193 622414
Trade payables (714,516 (99,547)
6,342,835 5,208.422
b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to financlal instruments will fadl 1o discharge an obligation and cause the alber
party to incur 4 financial hoss. The Company i expesed bo credit risk on the financial instraments as follows:

As al 31 December
2020 09

Cash and cash equivalonts S0,061,158 68,455,784
Trade receivables 41,260,502 41,026,047
91,321,690 109,481,831

The camrying amsount of financial sssets represents the maximum credit exposare.

The Company manages credit risk relating o trade receivables in sooondance with the specifled policles and
procedures. The Company fimits credit risk relating 10 rade recelvables by senting credit limits for each customser
and continuoisly monitoring outstanding trade receivables.,

The mevemeni on the provision of expected credit losses refated 1o the trade receivablies is a5 Nollows:

As ot 31 December
2020 W19
Balance as ar | Jamuary 1,251,104 1001147
Additions during the year 240,000 735,957
Balance as a1 31 December 1A%, 104 1,251,104

) Liquidity risk

Liuidity risk is the risk that an enderpeise will encounter diffsculty in raising fusds to meet commitments associated
with Entl'u:i.lil instrumsents. Liguidity risk sy result from ihe inability 1o sell & financial asset quickly at an amount
close to its fnir value. Following are the contractual matisities at the end of the reporting period of firancial
liahilitiea. The ameants ane prossed and undiscounted end include estimaned intensst payments,

Lews thamone  From | year to 5

As at 31 Decemiver 2020 Book value year ik Taiul
Leese lnbility TAL3040 TA13.040 - LA
Trade payables 16,744,015 16,744,115 y 16,744,015
Acer] and other payables 50,752,165 50,752,165 - 50,752 165

65,5 221 69.9009,22 1 - 65,509,221
Lese Habiling 5,081,256 = 198,704 2852 552 5,081,235
Trade payabhe: 15,124,667 05,024,607 - 15,124,667
Accrual and other payables IB.953 343 38,953,343 - JResi543

$9,159.266 56276714 2,882,852 59,159,266

Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring on a regular basis that suificient finds and banking und other credit
facilities are availabbe 1o nseel the Company’s future commitments. The Company's terms of sabes raquire amaunts
b be paid gither on a cash on delivery or on o terms basis. _-,-
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CITY CEMENT COMPANY
5 5 E E = A Saudi Joint Stock Company
5 3 E s = g 1 2 |8 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e o ‘§ E 4 |# FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
. A amounds in Saudi Riyals mmless otherwise stabid)
E § . Bwout
The Company restated certain amounds and halances inchaded in the prior yenr linancinl stadements os the
i E a % transactions: 1o which these balances relute, hsd not been sccounted for correctly, and sccordingly sdjusted
j i i in scoondance with the requirements of IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors™.
E!i i The details of each of such restatements have been summarized below:
g5 u
2E % E 3 31 December 2019 Reported (123,45 26} i
i3 = : = & Stwtcment of nancial position
% E x Property, plant and equipmeént |ASOOG3I66 17439885  SOTI606 | 5I8313857
#E g c |8 E : 2 E Capital work in progress 25619% - (2:561,976)
% f E g § > 3 B ——— 116999250 - (116999.250) -
E" 0 ¢ % Invenkorics 4407553 - SEB0E20 212916156
= % - . E. g Prepayments and other receivables 14689.190 . (468, 107) 14,521 083
g'E i E g g E g § ¥ i Statisiry reserve (152371,733) (100647 - (153,421,380)
£ 2 Z H E : Osher reserves LAITO 141700
EE = Eg E z Rictained caming (201458.566) (10,366,583)  (LAIT014)  (213242,163)
E 5 i 1 E E E E r E Current portion of leuse fisbility (2666811 WRIOT  (2,108,704)
p E 3 53 PR 53 Provision for rehabiliuation of sreas.  (600.000)  (5.601,363) (6,201,368)
Egg F gs ig % Ep ; E g :m‘“mm (11.233956)  (422.287)
= : 1 (11.656,243)
; § 5 : ;
i i Il i i
go gg% n.il g5 £8 B i Statement of profit or loss
Eg Egé i %g ié Eé .i,l' ,g g ; % Cost of salcy 300725 (9R12411) 300264814
EE‘ EE a : - E : 'E_E 'EE =8 é E Finance cos £19,391 28514 1,057,905
Eé Eﬁi ! ig E% EI‘E Ea g’% ‘ E Zakat expense 14980512 422287 15,402,799
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(Al amounts in Saudi Rivals unless stherwise staed) (Al amounts in Sawdi Rivals unless otherwise stated)
Previoushy Restatement  Re-classiflcation
1 Jamuary 2019 Keported {1,2.3,4.5) {1.6) Restated
Statement of financial position The impact of calculating the depreciation of property, plant and equipment as a result of the change in the weful
lifie of property, plant and equipment in 2019, 10 comply with the requirements of LAS (8) "Accounting Policies,
Property, pland amd equipment L39629.598 7227474 I8 174,324 | 580,030,390 Changes in Accounting Estimaes and Emrars”®,
Capital work in progress 135353388 - {135,353,386) - Bestatement (2)
Ko varls 121012208 - (121,012.208) | The imapact of reclassafying ke spare panis accoul in accordance with ihe requirements of IAS 16 info simiegic
and reserve spare parts that have been classified into machinery and equipiment, and consumable spane parts that
[nveninrbes 9B AT . 75191269 273 hib, 361 have been classified nbo imverstory, The Company depreciates spare parts included in the machinery and cquipment.
Thiz amendment i3 retrospectively in onder 1o comply with the requinensents of [AS (8) "Accounting Policies,
Retained earning (115498,021) (2.264.620) (TL147) {117,834, 7&8) Changes in Acoounting Fstimates and Emors™,
Provision for rebabilitation of areas. - (S9ATE54) - (5,962 834) The kmpact of recognizing the provision for the rehabilitation of arcas subject 1o 2 franchise license a1 the present
subject 1o franchise oense viths of the expecied cost of nehabilitation the site and the plan land of the Company. The present value of the

provision was estimaied end the provision was recorded =t the expected present value at the end of the factory's
usefll life, and this requires retrospective adjustment as & result of non-recogmition of this provision initinlly.

Restatgment (4)
omy et Batat Brshaitasian _ huiid ol B L) o 1 o e o N ik v
Net profil for the vesr hefore i 195925985 9571897 - 205499882
Depreciation BSB6E  (ATIZAID) - £1,271,238 Restalsmert ()
P of o The calculation of the 2019 Zakst provision has been corrected,
parts 1500000 (1,500,000) : :
Provision for factory dismandling 400,000 (o0000) - . Reclasificaion (0)
il o e S s e ot s O 0 e e
Finznce ¢os E19.591 RS . 1057905
Inventories 53399556 - 6,350,649 59,750,205
Prepayments and ofher receivables 33048 . 88,107 4,308,388
Change in spare pans inventory 1512955 - (2.512.935) .

Purchase of property, plant and
couipmend and capim| work in

progress Eumy - {8.964.214) (17,081,226)
Capital work in progress {5,126, 530) - 511520 =
Repaymwents of lease latility 4am - {468.107) (2879.369)
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33 Skmifcant events

In response to the spread of the Covid-19 in the Kingdom of Sasdi Arabia and its resulting disnuptions to the

sicinl and eoonamic activities in thos: markcts, the management of the Company had proactively assessed is

impacts on its operations and took a series of preventive measures, including the creation of on-going crish

nunagemen fewmes nnd proeesses, o ensuee the heahh and safery of s emploveds, customers, and the wider

community s well s 1o ensure the continudty of supply of its products throughout its markets. The management |

of the Company believes that the Covid-19 pundemic has bad no maicrial effect on the Company's reporied .
fimancisl resuls.

The Company continues to monitor the Covid-19 situstion closely although al this lime mansgement is not swane
of any factors that are expected to change the impact of the pandemic on the Company's operstions during 2021,

M. Sabstquent events
Thene ane no subsequent cvems have occurred after the end of the yesr until the agproval of this fimancial stolements,
which require sdiustment o dischosure,

35 Approval of the inancial statements

These financial statemients were approved by the Board of Dircciors on 16 RAJAB 1442 (H) Comesponding 1o
2% FERRUARY 2021 (G) o

R et
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